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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company_lPublic Shareholding Companx.). 
and its subsidiary 

Directors' Report 

The Directors have pleasure in presentjn g their report together with the audited consolidated financia l 
s tatements of Al-Sagr National Jnsurance Company (Public Sharehold ing Company); a nd its subsid iary 
("the Group") for the year ended 31December2017. 

Financia l Highlights 

The Group has reported a premium of AED 396.2 million for year ended 31 December 2017 compared to 
AED 378.7 million for the corresponding prior year, The Group has reported an underwriting profit of 
AED 80...1 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 compared to AED 39.4 millio n for the corresponding 
prior year. the group re ported for the year ended 2017 a net profit of AED 20.1 million compared to a net 
profit of AED 20.7 million in 2016. 

Directors:-

Auditors:-

M r . Majid Abdulla Al Sari 

M r. Khalid Abdulla Omran Tariam 

M r. Amjad Mohd Yusri Al Dwcik 

Mr. Mohamed Ali Al Sari 

Mr. Sami S hakhshir 

Chairman 
Vice Chairman 
Director 

Director 
Director & CEO 

KPMG were appointed as auditors of the Al Sagr Nationa l Insurance Company for the year 2017 at the 
Annua l General Meeting held on 25 April 2017. 

For and on behalf of the board 

c;;G:;~ 
Sami Shakhshir 
Direclor & CEO 
25 Ma rch 2018 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
To the Shareholders of Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding 
Company) and its subsidiary 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al-Sagr National Insurance 
Company (Public Shareholding Company) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, 
the consolidated statements of profit or loss, other comprehensive income, changes 
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 
2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS). 
 
Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 
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Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
1. Valuation of insurance contract liabilities 

 
Refer to note 5 and 12 of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Valuation of these liabilities involves significant judgement, and requires a number 
of assumptions to be made that have high estimation uncertainty. This is 
particularly the case for those liabilities that are recognised in respect of claims 
that have occurred, but have not yet been reported (“IBNR”) to the Group. IBNR is 
calculated by an independent qualified external actuary for the Group. 
 
Small changes in the assumptions used to value the liabilities, particularly those 
relating to the amount and timing of future claims, can lead to a material impact on 
the valuation of these liabilities and a corresponding effect on profit or loss. The 
key assumptions that drive the reserve calculations include loss ratios, estimates 
of the frequency and severity of claims and, where appropriate, the discount rates 
for longer tail classes of business. 
 
The valuation of these liabilities depends on accurate data about the volume, 
amount and pattern of current and historical claims since they are often used to 
form expectations about future claims. If the data used in calculating insurance 
liabilities, or for forming judgements over key assumptions, is not complete and 
accurate then material impacts on the valuation of these liabilities may arise. 
 
Our response: Our audit procedures supported by our actuarial specialists 
included: 
 
• evaluating and testing of key controls around the claims handling and case 

reserve setting processes of the Group. Examining evidence of the operation of 
controls over the valuation of individual reserve for outstanding claims and 
consider if the amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements is 
valued appropriately; 
 

• obtaining an understanding of and assessing the methodology and key 
assumptions applied by the management. Independently re-projecting the 
reserve balances for certain classes of business; 
 

• assessing the experience and competence of the Group’s actuary and degree 
of challenge applied through the reserving process; 
 

• checking sample of reserves for outstanding claims through comparing the 
estimated amount of the reserves for outstanding claims to appropriate 
documentation, such as reports from loss adjusters; and 
 

• assessing the Group’s disclosure in relation to these liabilities, including claims 
development table, is appropriate. 
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Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
2. Recoverability of Insurance receivables 

 
Refer to note 5 and 13 of the consolidated financial statements. 

 
The Group has significant premium and insurance receivables against written 
premium policies. There is a risk over the recoverability of these receivables. The 
determination of the related impairment allowance is subjective and is influenced 
by judgements relating to the probability of default and probable losses in the 
event of default. 
 
Our response: 
 
• our procedure on the recoverability of insurance receivables included evaluating 

and testing key controls over the processes designed to record and monitor 
insurance receivables; 
 

• testing the ageing of trade receivables to assess if these have been accurately 
determined; 
 

• obtained movement of balances due from respective counterparties such as 
policyholders, agents, and brokers and vouched transactions on sample basis; 
 

•  verifying payments received from such counterparties post year end; 
 

• considering the adequacy of provisions for bad debts for significant customers, 
taking into account specific credit risk assessments for each customer based 
on period overdue, existence of any disputes over the balance outstanding, 
history of settlement of receivables against liabilities with the same 
counterparties; and 
  

• discussing with management and reviewing correspondence, where relevant, 
to identify any disputes and assessing whether these were appropriately 
considered in determining the impairment allowance. 
 

3. Valuation of investment properties 
 
Refer to note 5 and 11 of the consolidated financial statements. 

  
The valuation of investment properties are determined through the application of 
valuation techniques which often involve the exercise of judgement and the use of 
assumptions and estimates. 
 
Due to the significance of investment properties and the related estimation 
uncertainty, this is considered a key audit matter. 
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Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 

3. Valuation of investment properties (continued) 
 

Investment properties are held at fair value through profit or loss in the Group’s 
statement of financial position and qualify under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy 
as at 31 December 2017. 
 
Our response: 

  

• We assessed the competence, independence and integrity of the external 
valuers and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine 
whether there were any matters that might have affected their objectivity or 
may have imposed scope limitations on their work; 

 

• We obtained the external valuation reports for the property and confirmed that 
the valuation approach is in accordance with RICS’ standards and is suitable for 
use in determining the fair value in the consolidated statement of financial 
position; 
 

• We carried out procedures to test whether property specific standing data 
supplied to the external valuers by management is appropriate and reliable; and 
 

• Based on the outcome of our evaluation, we determined the adequacy of the 
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
 

Other Information 
 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors report as set out on page 1. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS and their preparation in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 
and UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 
internal control. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(continued) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information 
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit.  We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company 
(Public Shareholding Company) and its subsidiary 

Independent auditors' report on the 
Consolidated financial statements (continued) 

31 December 2017 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that: 

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered 
necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

ii) the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all 
material respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 
(2) of 2015; 

iii) the Group has maintained proper books of account; 

iv) the financial information included in the Directors' report, in so far as it relates 
to these consolidated financial statements, is consistent with the books of 
account of the Group; 

v) as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group 
has not purchased any shares during the year ended 31 December 2017; 

vi) note 26 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related 
party transactions and the terms under which they were conducted; 

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has 
come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Group has 
contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 any of the 
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or in respect of 
the Company its Articles of Association, which would materially affect its 
activities or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2017; and 

viii) note 22 to the consolidated financial statements discloses the social 
contributions made during the year. 

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended, we 
report that we have obtained all the information and explanation we considered 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

Fawzi AbuRass 
Registration No.: 968 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates 
Date: 2 5 MAR 2018 
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company) 
and its subsidiary 

Consolidated statement of financial pos ition 
as at 

ASSETS 

Property and equipment 
lnvcs1mcn1 in associates 
lnvesuncnt in financial assets at f'VT PL 
Investment in financial assets at f'VTOCI 
Investment properties 
Insurance receivables 
Reinsurer share of outstanding claims 
Rcinsurcr share of incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) 
Reinsurcr share of unearned premium reserve 
Due from related parries 
Other rcct: ivables and prepayments 
Security dl!posits 
ca~h and bank balances 
Asset held for sale 

Total assets 

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Share capital 
Statutory reserve 
General reserve 
Investments revaluation reserve 
Retained earning I (accumulated loss) 

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 

Non-controlling interests 

Tota l equity 

Liabilities 
Due 10 rclntcd parties 
Provision for employees' end of service indemnity 
Bank borrowings 
Insurance and other payables 
Outstanding claims reserve 
Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) reserve 
Unearned premium reserve 
Unexpired risk reserve 
Una I located loss adj ustmcnt expense reserve 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabili ties 

Note 

8 
9 
10 
10 
II 
13 
12 
12 
12 
26 
14 

15 
25 

16 
17 
18 

26 
19 

20 
21 
12 
12 
12 
12 
12 

3 1 December 
2017 
AEO 

6,575, 115 
165, 746,393 
53,500,127 

172,602,503 
134,066,817 
143,394,000 

15,836,000 
54,266,000 

104,074,8 14 

18,133,200 
667,775 

239,248,629 
1,693,322 

I, I 09,804,695 

230,000,000 
67,257,868 

I 00,000,000 

57,863,417 

455, 121 ,285 

455,121 ,285 

91,800 
14,294,533 

125,421,763 
134,744,334 
164,309,980 
43,326,000 

168,520,000 
1,133,000 
2,842,000 

654,683,410 

I , I 09,804,695 

The notes from 1 10 30 form an integral part or Lhcsc consolidated financial statements. 

3 1 December 
2016 
AED 

7,660,109 
173 ,581 ,343 
6 1,534,832 

2,538,147 
172,934,241 
139,973,269 
150,434,398 

9,821 ,000 
47,3 15,638 

104,67 1,938 

25,238,635 
239,675 

268,268,460 

1, 164,2 11 ,685 

230,000,000 
65.220,938 

200,000,000 
( 1.379,079) 

(46,589,876) 

447,25 1,983 

570,543 

44 7 .822.526 

104,752 
14,328,526 

145,909,069 
152,489,357 
186,583,844 
42,14 1,174 

170,673,437 
909,000 

3,250,000 

716,389, 159 

1,164.2 11 ,685 

These consolidated linancial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 
2 7 - 1 _ 'b/& and signed on their hehalf'by: 

The independent auditors' report is set out on pages 2 - 8. 
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note AED AED

UNDERWRITING RESULTS

Underwriting income
Gross insurance premium 396,286,918 378,776,098
Less: reinsurance share of gross premium (155,461,362)       (135,587,898)       
Less: reinsurance share of ceded business premium (2,199,355)           (6,824,734)           
Net retained premium 238,626,201 236,363,466
Net change in unearned premium reserve (9,400,840)           6,464,082
Net insurance premium 229,225,361 242,827,548

Commission earned 84,222,804 65,613,968
Commission incurred (32,383,913)         (31,918,955)         
Underwriting income 281,064,252 276,522,561
Gross claims paid (340,373,059)       (327,741,111)       
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 127,653,656 116,918,503
Net claims paid (212,719,403)       (210,822,608)       
Decrease / (increase) in provision for 
  outstanding claims 10,427,382 (11,594,954)         
Increase / (decrease) in reinsurer share of 
  outstanding claims 3,688,607 (19,266,508)         
(Increase) / decrease in unexpired risk reserve (224,000)              6,888,000
Increase in incurred but not reported claims
  (IBNR) reserve (2,152,364)           (2,576,420)           
Decrease in unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 408,000 253,000

Net claims incurred (200,571,778)       (237,119,490)       

Underwriting profit 80,492,474 39,403,071
Net investments loss 22 (18,759,401)         (8,416,617)           
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 25 (1,714,086)                                     -   
Share of profits from equity accounted investees 9.2 1,965,050 30,027,127
General and administrative expenses (41,860,310)         (40,293,889)         
Profit for the year 20,123,727 20,719,692

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 20,369,302 21,056,787
Non-controlling interest (245,575)              (337,095)              

20,123,727 20,719,692

Earnings per share 24 0.09 0.09                      

The notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The independent auditors' report is set out on pages 2 - 8.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
AED AED

Profit for the year 20,123,727 20,719,692

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Net change in investment in financial assets 
   at fair value through other comprehensive 
    income                          -                             -   

Other comprehensive income for the year                          -                             -   

Total comprehensive income for 
  the year 20,123,727 20,719,692

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 20,369,302 21,056,787
Non-controlling interest (245,575)              (337,095)              

20,123,727 20,719,692

The notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The independent auditors' report is set out on pages 2 - 8.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company) and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Investments Non-
Share Statutory General revaluation Accumulated Total controlling Total

capital reserve reserve reserve loss interest equity
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED AED

Balance at 1 January 2016 230,000,000 63,115,259 200,000,000     (1,361,523) (65,301,132)     426,452,604 650,230 427,102,834
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit / (loss) for the year                   -                   -                      -                     -   21,056,787 21,056,787     (337,095) 20,719,692
Other comprehensive income
Movement in net change in investment in 
   financial assets at fair value through  
    other comprehensive income                   -                   -                      -                     -                        -                       -                  -                      -   
Total other comprehensive income                   -                   -                      -                     -                        -                       -                  -                      -   
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year                   -                   -                      -                     -   21,056,787      21,056,787         (337,095) 20,719,692

Transactions with owners directly 
  recorded in equity
Transfer to statutory reserve                   -      2,105,679                    -                     -          (2,105,679)                     -                  -                      -   
Change in non-controlling interest                   -                   -                      -            (17,556)           (239,852)          (257,408)       257,408                    -   
Balance at 31 December 2016 230,000,000 65,220,938 200,000,000     (1,379,079) (46,589,876)     447,251,983 570,543 447,822,526

The notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company) and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Accumulated
Investments loss Non-

Share Statutory General revaluation retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earning Total interest equity

AED AED AED AED AED AED AED AED

Balance at 1 January 2017 230,000,000 65,220,938 200,000,000     (1,379,079) (46,589,876)     447,251,983 570,543 447,822,526

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit / (loss) for the year                   -                   -                       -                     -   20,369,302      20,369,302     (245,575)    20,123,727
Other comprehensive income
Movement in net change in investment in 
   financial assets at fair value through  
    other comprehensive income                   -                   -                       -                     -                        -                       -                  -                      -   
Total other comprehensive income                   -                   -                       -                     -                        -                       -                  -                      -   
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year                   -                   -                       -                     -   20,369,302 20,369,302 (245,575)    20,123,727

Deconsolidation effect of subsidiary (note 25)                   -                   -                       -        1,379,079        (1,379,079) -                     (324,968)         (324,968)

Transactions with owners directly
    recorded in equity
Transfer from general reserve (note 18)                   -                   -    (100,000,000)                   -        100,000,000                     -                  -                      -   
Transfer to statutory reserve                   -      2,036,930                     -                     -          (2,036,930)                     -                  -                      -   
Dividend paid                   -                   -                       -                     -        (11,500,000)     (11,500,000)                -      (11,500,000)
Directors' fee paid during the year                   -                   -                       -                     -          (1,000,000)       (1,000,000)                -        (1,000,000)
Balance at 31 December 2017 230,000,000 67,257,868 100,000,000                   -   57,863,417      455,121,285                -   455,121,285

The notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
AED AED

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year            20,123,727            20,719,692 
Adjustment for:
Depreciation              1,570,140              2,076,397 
Loss on revaluation of investments - FVTPL 10.1                 634,173                 228,793 
Net (loss) / gain on sale of investment in securities                 190,404             (1,334,784)
Interest income            (7,859,928)             (7,735,154)
Dividend income            (1,480,759)             (2,055,916)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment                          -                       3,586 
Loss on disposal of subsidiary              1,714,086                           -   
Share of profit from equity accounted investees            (1,965,050)           (30,027,127)
Provision for employees' end of service indemnity              1,258,173              1,173,227 
Provision for doubtful debt from a related party 22              6,352,500                           -   
Finance costs              6,319,714              5,653,658 
Operating cash flows before movements in
    working capital            26,857,180           (11,297,628)

Change in insurance receivables          (14,797,107)            76,962,115 
Change in reinsurer share of outstanding claims            (3,688,607)            19,266,508           
(IBNR)             (6,015,000)            14,796,567 
Change in reinsurer share of unearned premium reserve            (7,506,021)             (3,405,722)
Change in due from related parties            (5,755,376)             (6,260,661)
Change in other receivables and prepayments              2,767,756           (10,388,597)
Change in security deposits               (428,100)                   11,110 
Change in due to related parties                 (12,952)                (414,555)
Change in insurance and other payables            (9,787,124)           (13,974,171)
Change in outstanding claims reserve          (10,427,382)           (65,235,919)
Change in incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) reserve              8,167,364           (12,220,147)
Change in unearned premium reserve            16,906,861             (3,058,360)
Change in unexpired risk reserve                 224,000             (6,888,000)
Change in unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve               (408,000)                (253,000)

Net cash used in operating activities            (3,902,508) (22,360,460)         
Interest paid            (6,319,714) (5,653,658)           
Employees' end of service indemnity paid            (1,292,166)                (212,315)
Net cash used in operations          (11,514,388) (28,226,433)         

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 8            (1,092,802) (619,263)              
Acquisition of investment properties; net            (2,602,503)                  (78,123)
Acquisition of investments in financial assets at FVTPL                          -                             -   
Net proceeds from sale of investment in financial assets at FVTPL              7,144,027              8,024,924 
Disposal of property and equipment                          -                     13,050 
Proceed from disposal of subsidiary              2,848,074                           -   
Dividend received from equity accounted investees              9,800,000                           -   
Dividends received              1,480,759              2,055,916 
Interest received              7,859,928              7,735,154 
Movement in cash and bank borrowings on disposal of subsidiary            (9,955,620)                           -   
Net cash generated from investing activities            15,481,863            17,131,658 
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
AED AED

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid          (11,500,000)                           -   
Payment of directors' fees (1,000,000)                                     -   
Net cash used in financing activities          (12,500,000)                           -   

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents            (8,532,525)           (11,094,775)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January          122,359,391          133,454,166 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (note 15)          113,826,866          122,359,391 

The notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The independent auditors' report is set out on pages 2 - 8.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the consolidated financial statements)

1 Legal status and activities

31 December 31 December Country of
Name of subsidiary Activity 2017 2016 incorporation

Jordan Emirates Insurance Underwriting of 34.10% 94.03% Jordan
     Company PSC insurance of all types

2                    Basis of preparation

a)                  Statement of compliance

b) Basis of measurement

c) Functional and presentation currency

d) Use of estimates and judgements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
which are measured at fair value.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirham (AED), which is the functional currency.
Except as otherwise indicated, financial information is presented in AED.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods effected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are described in note 5.

i)    financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL");
ii)  financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"); and
iii)  investment properties.

Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Share holding Company), Dubai (the "Company") was incorporated
on 25 December 1979 as a public shareholding company by an Emiri Decree from His Highness, The Ruler of
Dubai, and is registered with the Ministry of Economy of the United Arab Emirates under registration No. (16).
The Company's address in Dubai is P.O. Box 14614, Dubai, U.A.E. The Company is a subsidiary of Gulf General
Investments Company (the "Parent Company"), a public company incorporated in U.A. E.

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types, except for life insurance. The
Company operates through its Head Office in Dubai and its branches in Dubai, Sharjah, Abu Dhabi, Al Ain, Ras
Al Khaima and Ajman in the U.A.E.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), applicable provisions of
UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007.

    Group’s Ownership

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
(collectively referred to as "the Group"). Details of subsidiary are as follows:

During the year, the Group has lost control over its subsidiary. Refer note 25 for details.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

2                    Basis of preparation (continued)

e) Changes in accounting policy

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that are issued and are effective for
accounting periods starting 1 January 2017 have been applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the
current and prior periods:

• Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)
• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle - various standards

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policy set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, except as explained in note 2(e).

a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Non controlling interest in the equity and results of the entities that are controlled by the Group are shown
separately as a part of consolidated statements of changes in equity in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Any contribution or discounts on subsequent acquisition, after control is obtained, of equity instruments from (or
sale of equity instruments to) non controlling interest is recognised directly in consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Investment in associates (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the total recognised gains
and losses of associates on an equity accounting basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the
date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of investment is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with associates are eliminated, wherever practicable, to the extent of the Group’s interest in the enterprise.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Acquisition from entities under common control 

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
comparative year presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group controlling shareholder’s
consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same
components within Group equity and any gain/loss arising is recognised directly in equity.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of
control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted
investee or in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of
influence retained.

b) Insurance contracts

i)   Classification

The Group issues contracts that transfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial risks.

Contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects
the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is significant if an insured event could cause
the Group to pay significant additional benefits as a result of an insured event occurring.

Insurance contracts may also transfer some financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in
one or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Contracts where insurance risk is not significant are classified as investment contracts.

Once a contract is classified as an insurance contract it remains classified as an insurance contract until all rights 
and obligations are extinguished or expired.

ii)  Recognition and measurement

Premiums

Gross premiums written reflect business incepted during the year, and exclude any fees and other amounts
collected with and calculated based on premiums. These are recognised when underwriting process is complete and
policies are issued.

The earned proportion of premiums is recognised as income. Premiums are earned from the date of attachment of
risk over the indemnity period and unearned premium is calculated using the basis described below:
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Insurance contracts (continued)

ii)  Recognition and measurement (continued)

Unearned premium reserve (UPR)

The unearned premium considered in the insurance contract liabilities comprise the estimated proportion of the
gross premiums written which relates to the periods of insurance subsequent to the statement of financial position
date. UPR are calculated using the 1/365 method except for marine cargo and engineering. The UPR for marine
cargo is recognised as fixed proportion of the written premiums as required in the financial regulation and UPR
for engineering assumes a linear increase in risk with the duration of the project such that the risk faced is 100% at
the expiry of the contract. The rate at which the premium is earned is deemed to increase at the same rate at which
the risk faced increases over the lifetime of the policy.

iii) Claims

Claims incurred comprise the settlement and the internal and external handling costs paid and changes in the
provisions for outstanding claims arising from events occurring during the financial period. Where applicable,
deductions are made for salvage and their recoveries.

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Group’s estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred
but unpaid at the reporting date whether reported or not, and related internal and external claims handling expense
reduced by expected salvage and other recoveries. Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual
reported claims. Provisions for claims outstanding are not discounted. Adjustments to claims provisions
established in prior periods are reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the period in which the
adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly. Provision is also made
for any claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) at the date of statement of financial position using a range of
standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a
margin for adverse deviation as required by the new regulations. The basis of estimating outstanding claims and
IBNR are detailed in note 5.

iv)  Provision for premium deficiency / liability adequacy test

Provision is made for premium deficiency arising from general insurance contracts where the expected value of
claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the reporting date exceeds the
unearned premiums provision and already recorded claim liabilities in relation to such policies. The provision for
premium deficiency is calculated by reference to classes of business which are managed together, after taking into
account the future investment return on investments held to back the unearned premiums and claims provisions.

v) Reinsurance

The Group cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential
through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities and income and expense arising from ceded reinsurance
contracts are presented separately from the assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related insurance
contracts because the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its direct obligations to its
policyholders.

Amounts due to and from reinsurers are accounted for in a manner consistent with the related insurance policies
and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance premiums are deferred and expensed using
the same basis as used to calculate unearned premium reserves for related insurance policies. The deferred portion
of ceded reinsurance premiums is included in reinsurance assets.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Insurance contracts (continued)

v) Reinsurance (continued)

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. A reinsurance asset is deemed impaired if there
is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that the Group may not recover
all amounts due, and that event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the
reinsurer. Impairment losses on reinsurance assets are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Profit commission in respect of reinsurance contracts is recognised on an accrual basis.

vi) Deferred acquisition cost

For general insurance contracts, the deferred acquisition cost asset represents the portion of acquisition costs which
corresponds to the proportion of gross premiums written that is unearned at the reporting date. Commission income
related to underwriting activities are recognised on a time proportion basis over the effective period of policy using the
same basis as described for unexpired risk premium.

vii) Insurance receivables and payables

Amounts due from and to policyholders, agents and reinsurers are financial instruments and are included in insurance
receivables and payables, and not in insurance contract provisions or reinsurance assets.

viii) Insurance contract provision and reinsurance assets

Insurance contract liabilities towards outstanding claims are made for all claims intimated to the Group and still unpaid
at the consolidated statement of financial position date, in addition for claims incurred but not reported. The unearned
premium considered in the insurance contract liabilities comprise the estimated proportion of the gross premiums
written which relates to the periods of insurance subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial position date.

The reinsurers' portion towards the above outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported and unearned premium
is classified as reinsurance contract assets in the consolidated financial statements.

c) Revenue (other than insurance revenue)

Revenue (other than insurance revenue) comprises the following:

i) Fee and commission income

Fee and commissions received or receivable which do not require the Group to render further service are recognised as
revenue by the Group on the effective commencement or renewal dates of the related policies.

ii) Investment income

Investment income comprises income from financial assets, rental income from investment properties, realised and
unrealised fair value gains/losses on investment property and financial assets at FVTPL.

Income from financial assets comprises interest and dividend income, net gains/losses on financial assets classified at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) , and realised gains/losses on other financial assets.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using effective interest rate method. Dividend income is
recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.
Basis of recognition of net gains/losses on financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss and realised
gains on other financial assets is described in note 3 (g).

Fair value gains/losses on investment property are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
these gains/losses are determined. Details of valuations during the year are included in note 11.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Property and equipment 

i) Recognition and measurement

ii) Subsequent costs

iii) Depreciation

Office premises (Jordan) 50 years
Office fixture 4 years
Furniture and equipment 4 to 11 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 6 years

e) Capital work in progress

The estimated useful lives for various categories of property and equipment is as follows :

Capital work-in-progress consists of property being developed for sale on completion and is measured at lower of
cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business,
less cost of completion and selling expenses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located.

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are
assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property and equipment.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate. No depreciation is charged on freehold land and capital-work-in-progress. Land is not depreciated and
is stated at cost.

Where parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property and equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the property and equipment, and is recognised net within other income/other
expenses in consolidated profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any related amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f)

g) Financial assets and liabilities

i) Non-derivative financial assets

Recognition

If a financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, then it is measured at fair value.

The Group makes an assessment of a business model at portfolio level as this reflect the best way the business is
managed and information is provided to the management.

The Group had adopted IFRS 9 (2009), Financial instruments in 2014 in advance of its effective date. The Group
had chosen 1 January 2014 as its date of initial application.

The Group initially recognises loans and advances and deposits on the date at which they are originated. All other
financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are
initially recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes party to the contractual provision of the
instrument.

Classification

At inception a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value.

Financial assets measured at amortised  cost

A financial asset qualifies for amortised cost measurement only if it meets both of the following two conditions :

● the asset is held within a business model whose objective  is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
   flows; and

● the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
   principle and interest on the principle amount outstanding.

A financial assets or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value.

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any
change therein recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group determines fair value on the basis of valuation provided by an independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised
borrowing costs.

Investment property
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Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

In making an assessment of whether an asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, the Group considers:

●  management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice;
●  how management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;
●  whether management's strategy focus on earning contractual interest revenue;
●  the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales;
●  the reason of any asset sales; and
●  whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period of time relative to their contractual maturity or are 
    sold shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Financial assets held for trading are not held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

The Group has designated certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss because designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, which would otherwise arise.

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

At initial recognition the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in certain equity instruments as at FVTOCI (fair value through other comprehensive
income). Designation to FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity instrument is held for trading.

Dividend in these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment.

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss and no impairment
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except when the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and receivables comprise mainly insurance receivables, deposits and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with the
banks and fixed deposits with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of short-term
commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.



24

Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

ii) Derivative financial assets

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its FVTPL investment. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if certain criteria are met.

iii) Equity securities

Ordinary shares of the Group are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

iv) Non-derivate financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

v) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of the
ownership are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is carried or retained by the Group is recognised as separate asset or liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position. On derecognition of financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assets or a portion of them.
If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfer of
assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, securities lending and repurchase
transactions.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

In certain transactions the Group retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The
transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the
servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than adequate
(liability) for performing the services.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligation are discharged or cancelled or expire.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Impairment

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired
when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows relating to the asset that can be estimated reliably. The
Group considers evidence of impairment at both a specific and collective level.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group
would not otherwise consider, indication that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a Group of assets such as adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables at both a specific asset and collective level.
All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and
receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together loans and receivables with similar risk characteristics.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a case-by-case basis whether there is any objective evidence that a
asset is impaired. Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off and/or any event resulting in a reduction in impairment
loss, decreases the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the consolidated profit or loss.

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against
loans and advances. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.
When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment
property) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
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h) Impairment (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

i) Fair value measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Group has access at that date.  The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted prices in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price -
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between
the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the
consolidated profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the
valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets and
long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the Group on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the basis of
a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular
risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis
of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

j) Asset held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining
assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax
assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale
or held-fordistribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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j) Asset held for sale (continued)

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated, and
any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

k) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the spot exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the spot exchange
rates ruling at the date of consolidated statement of financial position. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at historical cost are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary and the equity of associates are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss of foreign subsidiary and the results of associates are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences on the retranslation are taken directly to the consolidated
other comprehensive income.

l) Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as finance cost.

m) Employee terminal benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group provides for staff terminal benefits based on an estimation of the amount of future benefits that employees
have earned in return for their service until their retirement. This calculation is performed on a projected unit credit
method.

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to the pension scheme for nationals under the pension and social security law. This is a defined
contribution pension plan and the Group's contribution are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they relate. In respect of this scheme, the Group has a legal and constructive obligation to pay the fund
contribution as they fall due and no obligations exists to pay the future benefits.

n)

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

o) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information
is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Group’s 
headquarters), head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

Earnings per share
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p) Offsetting

q)

r)

Accounting Standard Description

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (2014)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Effective Date

(effective 1 January 2018)

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 (2009) which sets out guidelines for the classification and measurement of financial
assets.  

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(effective 1 January 2019)
(effective 1 January 2018)

(effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or of gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and it
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

IFRS 16 Leases

Revenue arising from insurance contracts and from financial instruments is outside the scope of IFRS 15. The
impact on the recognition of revenue from other services delivered to customers by the Group is expected to be
insignificant.

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue , IAS 11 Construction 
Contracts  and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes .

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and the new general
hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments from IAS 39.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of this standard on it's consolidated financial
statements, which is applicable for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Directors' remuneration

In accordance with the Ministry of Economy and Commerce Interpretation of Article 169 of Federal Law No. 2 of
2015 (as amended), directors' remuneration of the Group has been treated as an appropriation from equity and
presented under consolidated statement of changes in equity.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards applicable to the Group are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2017 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the
following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted 
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q)

4.

i)

ii)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of this standard on it's consolidated financial
statement resulting from application of this IFRS 16, which is applicable for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

Risk management

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform
measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve
the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 'Insurance
Contracts' as of 1 January 2021.

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided that the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the
date it first applies IFRS 17. Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a
group of insurance contracts is not practical, then the entity is required to choose either a modified retrospective
approach or a fair value approach.

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2021. The application of IFRS 17 may have a significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Company's financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts. However, it is not
practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of this standard until the Company
performs a detailed review.

The Group issues contracts that transfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial risks. The Group
does not issue contracts that transfer only financial risks. This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages them:

Risk management framework

The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Group. The Group’s Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Board has established the Audit Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on
its activities.

Governance framework

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group’s
shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the set financial performance objectives.
Management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in
place.
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iii)

iv)

v)

a)

General insurance contracts Life insurance contracts

· Liability insurance · Group life insurance
· Property insurance · Credit life insurance
· Motor insurance
· Fire insurance
· Medical insurance
· Marine insurance
· Engineering insurance

Risk management (continued)

Two key elements of the Group’s insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

The principal risk the Group faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the
timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

Insurance risks 

The Group accepts insurance risk through its written insurance contracts. The Group is exposed to uncertainty
surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under these contracts. The Group writes the following
types of general insurance and life insurance contracts:

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The Group only issue short term insurance contracts in connection
with property, motor, marine and casualty risks.

Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and shareholders and monitor
closely to ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators
are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen
liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters. 

The Group’s ALM also forms an integral part of the insurance risk management policy, to ensure in each period
sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance.

The operations of the Group are also subject to regulatory requirements within the UAE. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions to minimise the risk
of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

Capital management framework

The Group has an internal risk management framework for identifying risks to which each of its business units and
the Group as a whole is exposed, quantifying their impact on economic capital.

Asset liability management (“ALM”) 

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements. The main risk that the Group faces due to the nature of its investments
and liabilities is interest rate risk and equity price risk. The Group manages these positions within an ALM
framework that has been developed by management to achieve long-term investment returns in excess of its
obligations under insurance and investment contracts.

The Group’s ALM is also integrated with the management of the financial risks associated with the Group’s other
financial assets and liabilities not directly associated with insurance and investment liabilities.
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v)

a)

Motor

Motor insurance contracts are designed to compensate policies holders for damage suffered to vehicles, disability
to third parties arising through accidents and fire or theft of their vehicles.

Underwriting limits and guidelines are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key
factors that influence the level of claims.

Property insurance covers a diverse collection of risks and therefore property insurance contracts are subdivided
into four risks groups, fire, business interruption, weather damage and theft.

Underwriting strategy

Property

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the properties and contents
insured. The cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken to restart
operations for business interruptions are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies. The
greatest likelihood of significant losses on these contracts arises from storm, flood damage or other weather related
incidents.

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Insurance risks (continued)

The principal risk the Group faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefits payments or the
timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The underwriting strategy is set out by the Group that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Group is prepared to underwrite.
This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting authorities
that set out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, territory and industry in
order to ensure appropriate risk selection within the portfolio. All general insurance contracts except marine, are
annual in nature and the underwriters have the right to refuse renewal or to change the terms and conditions of the
contract at renewal.

The Group has developed their underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within
each of the categories to achieve sufficiently large populations of risk to reduce the variability of the expected
outcome. The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group underwrite mainly
property, motor, casualty, medical and marine risks. These are regarded as short-term insurance contracts as claims
are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking place.

The Group’s underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This
reduces the variability of the portfolios outcome.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guideline, as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Frequency and amounts of claims



32

Al-Sagr National Insurance Company (Public Shareholding Company)
   and its subsidiary
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )

4.

v)

a)

Marine

Marine insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage and liability arising through loss or
damage to marine craft and accidents at sea resulting in the total or partial loss of cargoes.

For marine insurance, the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or
partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well diversified in terms of
vessels and shipping routes covered.

Casualty

For casualty class of business, such as workmen's compensation, personal accident, general third party liability and
loss of money, the extent of loss or damage and the potential court awards are the main factors that influence the
level of claims.

The Group manage these risks through their underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selections.

The Group proactively manages and pursues early settlement of claims to reduce their exposure to unpredictable
developments.

The Group have adequate reinsurance arrangements to protect their financial viability against such claims for all
classes of business.

The Group have obtained adequate non-proportionate reinsurance cover for all classes of business to limit losses
to an amount considered appropriate by the management.

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Insurance risks (continued)

Frequency and amounts of claims (continued)

Medical

Medical selection is part of the Group's underwriting procedures, whereby contributions are charged to reflect the
health condition and family medical history of the applicants. Pricing is based on assumptions, such as mortality
and persistency, which consider past experience and current trends. Contracts including specific risks and
guarantees are tested for profitability according to predefined procedures before approval.

Products are reviewed by the business units on an annual basis to confirm, or otherwise, that pricing assumptions
remain appropriate. Analysis is performed on earnings and liability movements to understand the source of any
material variation in actual result from what was expected. This confirm the appropriateness of assumption and in
underwriting and pricing.

Concentration of risk

The Group's underwriting activities are carried out in the United Arab Emirates and other Middle East countries.
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a)

v)

Reinsurance strategy

b)

The Group reinsures a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to losses and
protect capital resources.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit risk, as discussed in the financial risk management note. The Group has a
Reinsurance department that is responsible for setting the minimum security criteria for acceptable reinsurance and
monitoring the purchase of reinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The department monitors
developments in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy.

The Group buys a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties to reduce the net
exposure to the Group. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain specified
circumstances. All purchases of facultative reinsurance are subject to business unit pre-approval and the total
expenditure on facultative reinsurance is monitored regularly by reinsurance department.

The Group has exposure to the following primary risks from its use of financial instruments and operations:

i) Credit risk;

iii) Market risk; and

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, 

i) Credit risk

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurer’s and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.

Insurance risks (continued)

At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers’ and updates the
reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment if required.

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation.

Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are regularly reviewed for pertinence and for
changes in the risk environment.

For all classes of financial assets held by the Group the maximum credit risk exposure to the Company is the
carrying value as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements at the reporting date.

ii) Liquidity risk;

iv) Operational risk

Financial risk

Reinsurance is placed with reinsurers’ approved by the management, which are generally international reputed
companies.
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b)

2017 2016
AED AED

Financial assets
Insurance receivables 134,066,817 139,973,269
Due from related parties 104,074,814 104,671,938
Other receivables 17,427,658 22,213,543
Security deposits 667,775 239,675
Bank balances 238,692,971 267,770,071

494,930,035 534,868,496

Gross Impairment 
provision Gross Impairment 

provision
2017 2017 2016 2016
AED AED AED AED

41,245,340                      -   60,792,826                      -   
20,660,939                      -   15,950,979                      -   

9,553,886                      -   14,590,676                      -   
8,721,803                      -   10,502,584                      -   

71,064,545 (17,179,696)    66,124,488 (27,988,284)    
151,246,513 (17,179,696)    167,961,553 (27,988,284)    

From 91-180 days
From 181-270 days
From 271-365 days
More than 365 days

ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a daily basis and management ensures that sufficient funds are
available to meet any commitments as they arise.

i) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

The age analysis of insurance receivables are as follows:

Less than 90 days

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Financial risk (continued)
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31 December 2017
Carrying 

amount
Contractual 

cash flows
Less than 180 

days
180 days to 1 

year
AED AED AED AED

Liabilities
Due to related parties 91,800 (91,800)           (91,800)                             -   
Bank borrowings 125,421,763 (125,421,763)  (125,421,763)                    -   
Insurance and other payables 134,744,334 (134,744,334)   (134,744,334)                    -   
Total liabilities 260,257,897 (260,257,897)  (260,257,897)                    -   

31 December 2016
Carrying 

amount
Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 180 
days

180 days to 1 
year

AED AED AED AED
Liabilities
Due to related parties 104,752 (104,752)         (104,752)                           -   
Bank borrowings 145,909,069 (145,909,069)  (145,909,069)                    -   
Insurance and other payables 152,489,357 (152,489,357)   (152,489,357)                    -   
Total liabilities 298,503,178 (298,503,178)  (298,503,178)                    -   

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all
securities traded in the market. The Group limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by
continuous monitoring of developments in local equity and bond markets. In addition, the Group actively monitors
the key factors that affect stock and bond market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial
performance of investees.

iii) Market risk

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Group based on remaining
undiscounted contractual obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be
given immediately.

Maturity profiles

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2017, fixed deposits carried
interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.25% per annum (2016: 2.5% to 5% per annum).

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and arises from financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency. The Group’s functional currency is
the UAE Dirham.

The Group has exposures in USD, which is pegged with AED and the Group’s exposure to currency risk is limited
to that extent, since almost all reinsurance arrangements are denominated in USD.

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
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10% increase in price 10% decrease in price

Profit or loss

 
comprehensive 

income Profit or loss

 
comprehensive 

income
AED AED AED AED

31 December 2017
Fair value through OCI                     -                           -                      -   -                      
Fair value through profit or loss 5,350,013                         -   (5,350,013)                             -   

31 December 2016
Fair value through OCI                     -   253,815                    -   (253,815)             
Fair value through profit or loss 6,153,483                         -   (6,153,483)                             -   

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

The Group’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Group’s equity price risk policy requires is to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and
constraints on investments, diversification plans, sector and market. The fair values of financial assets are not
different from their carrying values.

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Group’s profit or loss and equity by type of business.
The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price risk factors arising from the impact of the changes
in these factors on the Group’s investments:

Sensitivities

iii) Market risk (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower throughout the year and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease by approximately AED 2.32 million
(2016: AED 2.62 million) . Similarly increase in interest by 100 basis points would result in equal and opposite
effect on profit for the year.

b) Interest rate risk (continued)

c) Equity price risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or
can lead to financial loss.

The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks.

The Group has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a compliance and
internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are
monitored through the Group’s strategic planning and budgeting process.

iv) Operational risk

Risk management (continued)

Asset liability management (“ALM”) (continued)

Financial risk (continued)
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5.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred and IBNR claims regularly.

There are a number of contracts sold where the Group exercises judgement about the level of insurance risk
transferred. The level of insurance risk is assessed by considering whether there are any scenarios with commercial
substance in which the Group is required to pay significant additional benefits. These benefits are those which
exceed the amounts payable if no insured event were to occur. These additional amounts include claims liability
and assessment costs, but exclude the loss of the ability to charge the holder of the contract for future services.

Provision for outstanding claims, whether reported or not

Use of estimates and judgements

The areas of the Group’s business containing key sources of estimation uncertainty include the measurement of
insurance contract provisions and the determination of valuation of investment properties.

Measurement of insurance contract provisions 

The Group’s accounting policy in respect of insurance contract accounting is discussed in more detail in note 3(b).
The key assumptions made in respect of insurance contract liabilities are included in note 12.

Insurance contract classification

Contracts are classified as insurance contracts where they transfer significant insurance risk from the holder of the
contract to the Group.

Considerable judgment by the management is required in the estimation of amounts due to the contract holders
arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on significant
assumptions about several factors involving varying, and possible significant, degrees of judgment and uncertainty
and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the date of
statement of financial position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) at
the date of statement of financial position. Estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but
not yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based
on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation and are presented in
Note 12.

Impairment of insurance receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of insurance receivables is made when collection of the full amount is no
longer probable. This determination of whether the insurance receivables are impaired, entails the Group
evaluating the credit and liquidity position of the policy holders and the insurance and reinsurance companies,
historical recovery rates and feedback received from the legal department. The difference between the estimated
collectible amount and the book amount is recognised as an expense in the consolidated profit or loss. Any
difference between the amounts actually collected in the future periods and the amounts expected will be
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss at the time of collection.

Provision made for doubtful debts on insurance receivables at 31 December 2017 was AED 17.18 million (2016: 
AED 27.99 million) .
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Valuation technique

1) Residual valuation approach
2) Sales comparative  
    valuation approach

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property values, having appropriate
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being
valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Group’s investment property portfolio annually.

Liability Adequacy Test

At each consolidated statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of insurance contract liabilities. The Group makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such
liabilities in evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the consolidated
profit or loss.

Valuation of investment properties

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

-Expected market rental 
growth rate
-Risk adjusted discount rates
-Free hold property
-Free of covenants , third party 
rights and obligations 
-Statutory and legal validity
-Condition of the property 
-Sales value of comparable 
properties

-Expected market rental growth 
  rate were higher
-The risk adjusted discount rates 
  were  lower / higher
-The property is not free hold
-The property is subject to any 
  covenants, rights and obligations 
-The property is subject to any 
  adverse legal notices / judgment
-The property is subject to any 
  defect / damages
-The property is subject to sales 
  value fluctuations of surrounding 
  properties in the area.

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment properties, as
well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

The Group has taken the average of valuations for the fair value measurement of its investment properties.

Significant unobservable 
inputs

Interrelationship between key 
unobservable inputs and fair value 
measurements
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6 Accounting classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

At 31 December 2017

Amortised
Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED AED AED AED

Investment in financial assets at FVTPL 53,500,127                   -                      -   53,500,127
Insurance receivables                   -                     -   134,066,817 134,066,817
Due from related parties                   -                     -   104,074,814 104,074,814
Other receivables                   -                     -   17,427,658 17,427,658
Security deposits                   -                     -   667,775 667,775
Cash and bank balances                   -                     -   239,248,629 239,248,629
Asset held for sale       1,693,322                   -                      -   1,693,322

55,193,449                   -   495,485,693 550,679,142

Financial liabilities Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED AED AED AED

Due to related parties                   -                     -   91,800 91,800
Bank borrowings                   -                     -   125,421,763 125,421,763
Insurance and other payables                   -                     -   134,744,334 134,744,334

                  -                     -   260,257,897 260,257,897

At 31 December 2016

Financial assets Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI  cost Total

AED AED AED AED

Investment in financial assets at FVTPL 61,534,832                   -                      -   61,534,832
Investment in financial assets at FVTOCI                   -   2,538,147 2,538,147
Insurance receivables                   -                     -   139,973,269 139,973,269
Due from related parties                   -                     -   104,671,938 104,671,938
Other receivables                   -                     -   22,213,543 22,213,543
Security deposits                   -                     -   239,675 239,675
Cash and bank balances                   -                     -   268,268,460 268,268,460

61,534,832 2,538,147 535,366,885 599,439,864

Financial liabilities Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI  cost Total

AED AED AED AED

Due to related parties                   -                     -   104,752 104,752
Bank borrowings                   -                     -   145,909,069 145,909,069
Insurance and other payables                   -                     -   152,489,357 152,489,357

                  -                     -      298,503,178        298,503,178 

The table below shows a reconciliation between line items in the consolidated statement of financial position and
categories of financial instruments.
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7 Fair value of financial instruments

a)

As at 31 December 2017
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AED AED AED AED

FVTPL - financial assets 36,071,320 17,428,807                    -   53,500,127
Assset held for sale 1,693,322                  -                      -   1,693,322

37,764,642 17,428,807                    -        55,193,449 

Non financial assets
Investment properties                    -                    -   172,602,503 172,602,503

37,764,642 17,428,807 172,602,503 227,795,952

As at 31 December 2016
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AED AED AED AED

FVTPL - financial assets 38,781,027   22,753,805                    -   61,534,832
FVTOCI - financial assets                    -                    -          2,538,147 2,538,147

38,781,027   22,753,805 2,538,147 64,072,979

Non financial assets
Investment properties                    -                    -   172,934,241 172,934,241

38,781,027   22,753,805 175,472,388 237,007,220

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Group has access at that date.  The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The following table analyses assets measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value hierarchy of assets/liabilities measured at fair value
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7 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

a)

2017 2016
AED AED

Balance at 1 January 175,472,388 175,394,265
Additions during the year             2,602,503               78,123 
Disposal of subsidiary           (5,472,388)                       -   
Balance at 31 December 172,602,503 175,472,388

b)

As at 31 December 2017
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AED AED AED AED

Insurance receivables -                        -                       134,066,817 134,066,817
Due from related parties -                        -                       104,074,814       104,074,814
Other receivables -                        -                       17,427,658         17,427,658
Security deposits -                        -                       667,775              667,775
Cash and bank balances -                        -                       239,248,629       239,248,629

-                        -                       495,485,693       495,485,693

Financial liabilities
Due to related parties -                        -                       91,800 91,800
Bank borrowings -                        -                       125,421,763 125,421,763
Insurance and other payables -                        -                       134,744,334 134,744,334
 -                        -                       260,257,897       260,257,897

As at 31 December 2016
Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AED AED AED AED

Insurance receivables -                        -                       139,973,269 139,973,269
Due from related parties -                        -                       104,671,938 104,671,938
Other receivables -                        -                       22,213,543 22,213,543
Security deposits -                        -                       239,675 239,675
Cash and bank balances -                        -                       268,268,460 268,268,460

-                        -                       535,366,885 535,366,885

Financial liabilities
Due to related parties -                        -                       104,752 104,752
Bank borrowings -                        -                       145,909,069 145,909,069
Insurance and other payables -                        -                       152,489,357 152,489,357

-                        -                       298,503,178 298,503,178

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyses them by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

Fair value hierarchy of assets/liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value
measurement in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
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8 Property and equipment

Furniture
Office Office and Motor

premises fixture equipment vehicles Total
AED AED AED AED AED

Cost
At 1 January 2016 463,275 7,530,216 13,663,365 1,036,672 22,693,528
Additions                  -                      -   587,263          32,000         619,263 
Disposal                  -                      -                     -           (26,100)         (26,100)
At 31 December 2016 463,275 7,530,216 14,250,628 1,042,572 23,286,691

At 1 January 2017 463,275 7,530,216 14,250,628 1,042,572 23,286,691
Additions                  -              30,000         500,802        562,000      1,092,802 
Disposal                  -                      -                     -         (315,000)       (315,000)
Disposal of subsidiary (note25)       (463,275)                    -       (5,240,879)       (502,592)    (6,206,746)
At 31 December 2017                  -   7,560,216 9,510,551 786,980 17,857,747

Depreciation
At 1 January 2016 52,499 2,320,601 10,317,748 868,801 13,559,649
Charge for the year 9,259 797,055 1,191,382 78,701 2,076,397
On disposals                  -                      -                     -   (9,464)         (9,464)          
At 31 December 2016 61,758 3,117,656 11,509,130 938,038 15,626,582

At 1 January 2017 61,758 3,117,656 11,509,130 938,038 15,626,582
Charge for the year            6,943          795,777         656,554        110,866      1,570,140 
On disposals                  -                      -                     -         (315,000)       (315,000)
Disposal of subsidiary (note25)         (68,701)                    -       (5,035,028)       (495,361)    (5,599,090)
At 31 December 2017                  -   3,913,433 7,130,656 238,543 11,282,632

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 2016 401,517 4,412,560 2,741,498 104,534 7,660,109

At 31 December 2017                  -   3,646,783 2,379,895 548,437 6,575,115
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9 Investment in associates
2017 2016
AED AED

Green Air Technology L.L.C., United Arab Emirates (note 9.1) 16,716 16,716

150,000 150,000
Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company (note 9.2) 165,579,677      173,414,627 

165,746,393 173,581,343

9.1

9.2

2017 2016
AED AED

As at 1 January      173,414,627      152,650,000 
Group's share of net profits for the year          1,965,050        30,027,127 
Dividend received during the year        (9,800,000)        (9,262,500)
Investment in associate      165,579,677      173,414,627 

Percentage of interest 20% 20%
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
AED AED

Assets   1,078,446,590   1,061,537,696 
Liabilities (619,048,950)      (562,965,305)
Net assets      459,397,640      498,572,391 

Group's share in net assets at 20%        91,879,528        99,714,478 
Goodwill and other intangibles at acquisition        73,700,149        73,700,149 
Investment in associate      165,579,677      173,414,627 

Revenue for the year      196,838,742      494,367,642 

Net profit for the year          9,825,249      150,135,639 

Group's share of net profit for the year at 20%          1,965,050        30,027,127 

Sogour Al Khaleej General Trading L.L.C.,
   United Arab Emirates (Note 9.1)

The Group holds 50% ownership in Green Air Technology L.L.C., a limited liability company incorporated in
Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The remaining 50% ownership is owned equally by the Parent Company and the CEO
of the Company.

The Group holds 50% ownership in Sogour Al Khaleej General Trading L.L.C., a limited liability company
incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The main activity of the Company is general trading. The remaining
50% ownership is owned by the Parent Company.

Although, the Group holds 50% equity in these two associates, these are controlled by the Parent Company. The
Group's voting rights in these entities do not give it control over these entities.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held 26% shares of Al Sagr Cooperative Insurance Company ("Al Sagr
Cooperative"). Out of the 26% shares, the Group holds 6% shares for the beneficial interest of other individuals.
Furthermore, the Group had entered into a sale purchase agreement for 1% of shares with a third party. Accordingly,
the Group had been accounting for only 19% shares in Al Sagr Cooperative up until 31 December 2015. However,
on 1 January 2016, the Group had reacquired 1% of the shares which it had previously sold. This resulted in an
increase in the Group's holding percentage to 20%, thereby giving the Group significant influence over Al Sagr
Cooperative. Accordingly, the Group reclassified its investment in Al Sagr Cooperative to an investment in
associate.
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10 Investment in financial assets

2017 2016
AED AED

53,500,127 61,534,832

                     -   2,538,147
Total 53,500,127 64,072,979

10.1 Following is the movement of investments at FVTPL during the year:
2017 2016
AED AED

Fair value at beginning of the year 61,534,832 211,841,640
Transfer to investment in associates (note 9.2)                      -      (152,650,000)
Net (disposals) / additions during the year        (7,334,431)          2,571,985 
Disposal of subsidiary (note 25)             (66,101)                      -   
Decrease in fair value           (634,173)           (228,793)

Fair value at end of the year 53,500,127 61,534,832

11 Investment properties
2017 2016
AED AED

At the beginning of the year 172,934,241 172,856,118
Additions during the year          2,602,503               78,123 
Disposal of subsidiary (note 25)        (2,934,241)                      -   
At the end of the year 172,602,503 172,934,241

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has two investment properties out of which one property is Meydan Tower
(property is under development but construction has not started), located in Dubai controlled by GGICO Real Estate
Development Co. L.L.C. in which the Group has 10% ownership. The carrying value of the property is AED 80
million (10% share of AED 800 million) (31 December 2016: AED 80 million). Another property located in Al
Barsha First, Dubai is currently under development, and has a carrying value of AED 92.6 million (31 December
2016: AED 90 million) and the addition during the year pertains to that property. The Group assessed the fair value
of the investment properties during 2017 externally. As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of investment
properties portfolio is not significantly different from its carrying value.

All investments are held within U.A.E. except for investments at FVTPL and investments at FVTOCI amounting to
AED 0.33 million (2016: AED 0.39 million) and Nil (2016: AED 2.57 million) , respectively, which are invested in
securities listed in Kuwait and Jordan.

Investment in financial asset at fair value through other
   comprehensive income ("FVTOCI")

Investment in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
   ("FVTPL") (note 10.1)

Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") includes investment in funds with a
related party amounting to AED 3.3 million (2016: AED 3.3 million) and investment in a company with a related
party amounting to AED 8.35 million (2016: 8.35 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not purchased shares (2016: AED 10.7 million) measured
at fair value through profit or loss.
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12 Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets

 
Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED

Total at the beginning of the year 232,884,018 (160,255,398)     72,628,620
Settled during the year (340,373,059)    127,653,656 (212,719,403)     
Provision made during the year 337,929,041 (137,357,263)     200,571,778

230,440,000 (169,959,005)     60,480,995
Disposal of subsidiary (note 25) (18,829,020)      10,729,005        (8,100,015)         
At 31 December 211,610,980 (159,230,000)     52,380,980

Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED

Total at the beginning of the year 240,650,202 (194,318,473)     46,331,729
Settled during the year (327,741,111)    116,918,503 (210,822,608)     
Provision made during the year 319,974,927 (82,855,428)       237,119,499
At 31 December 232,884,018 (160,255,398)     72,628,620

Movement in unearned premium reserve

Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED

Total at the beginning of the year 170,673,437 (47,315,638)       123,357,799
Provision made during the year 187,580,298 (54,821,659)       132,758,639
Provision released during the year (170,673,437)    47,315,638        (123,357,799)     

187,580,298     (54,821,659)       132,758,639      
Disposal of subsidiary (note 25) (19,060,298)      555,659             (18,504,639)       
At 31 December 168,520,000 (54,266,000)       114,254,000

Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED

Total at the beginning of the year 173,731,797 (43,909,916)       129,821,881
Provision made during the year 170,673,437 (47,315,638)       123,357,799
Provision released during the year (173,731,797)    43,909,916 (129,821,881)     
At 31 December 170,673,437 (47,315,638)       123,357,799

2017

2016

2017

2016

Movement in outstanding claims reserve, IBNR reserve, unexpired risk reserve and unallocated loss adjustment
expense reserve
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12 Insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Assumptions and sensitivities

Claim development table

2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Gross AED AED AED AED AED

- At the end of underwriting year      228,759,057      257,053,647      273,372,583      279,431,127                        -   
- One year later      278,903,773      304,395,472      315,323,337                       -                          -   
- Two years later      273,754,718      312,701,471                    -                         -                          -   
- Three years later      281,199,146                    -                      -                         -                          -   
Current estimate of incurred claims      281,199,146      312,701,471      315,323,337      279,431,127     1,188,655,081 
Cumulative payments to date (285,712,941)      (309,691,825)     (304,515,052)     (156,578,651)   (1,056,498,469)
Liability recognised (4,513,795)       3,009,646        10,808,285       122,852,476            132,156,612 
Liability in respect of 2013 and prior years          32,153,368 

       164,309,980 

Net

- At the end of underwriting year      146,139,441      185,971,890      171,150,776      130,810,502                        -   
- One year later      195,435,788      238,483,216      207,423,675                       -                          -   
- Two years later      199,940,750      244,330,655                    -                         -                          -   
- Three years later      204,001,720                    -                      -                         -                          -   
Current estimate of incurred claims      204,001,720      244,330,655      207,423,675      130,810,502        786,566,552 
Cumulative payments to date (209,900,558)      (243,998,067)     (202,802,078)     (105,889,663)      (762,590,366)
Liability recognised (5,898,838)                   332,588          4,621,597        24,920,839          23,976,186 
Liability in respect of 2013 and prior years          (3,060,206)

         20,915,980 

Estimate of net incurred claims costs

Total liability included in the
 statement of financial position 

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of insurance contract provisions are the expected loss ratios for the most
recent accident years. 
An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Group’s estimation process. The Group
believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position is adequate. However, it recognises that the process of
estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could differ when claims are finally settled.

Estimate of net incurred claims costs

Underwriting year

Total liability included in the
 statement of financial position 

The method used by the Group for provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past estimates and details of the reinsurance
programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveries. Estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but
not yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and
current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.

Process used to determine the assumptions 

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral estimates of the
most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions are internal, using detailed studies that are carried
out annually. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they are consistent with observable market practices or other published
information. 

The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost
of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to the claim circumstances,
information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and
are updated as and when new information arises.

The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of subsequent
developments or if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate costs of the loss is difficult to
estimate. 

The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance contract, claim
complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the occurrence date of a claim, and reporting lags. 
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13 Insurance receivables

2017 2016
AED AED

Due from policy holders 23,259,717 28,040,628
Due from insurance and reinsurance companies 66,902,450 69,677,074
Due from agents and brokers 45,580,111 53,381,434
Due from garages 15,504,235 16,862,417
Allowance for doubtful receivables (note 13.1)     (17,179,696)     (27,988,284)

134,066,817 139,973,269

13.1

Movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables
2017 2016
AED AED

Balance at beginning of the year 27,988,284 30,427,923
Write-off during the year                     -         (3,483,639)
Charged during the year 261,000 1,044,000
Disposal of subsidiary (note 25)     (11,069,588)                     -   
Balance at end of the year 17,179,696 27,988,284

14 Other receivables and prepayments

2017 2016
AED AED

Accrued interest income 2,997,202 2,447,814
Staff advances 441,742 691,023
Other receivables 13,988,714 19,074,706
Prepayments 705,542 3,025,092

18,133,200 25,238,635

15 Cash and bank balances

2017 2016
AED AED

Cash in hand 555,658 498,389

Bank balances:
  Current accounts 6,614,681 5,982,211
  Fixed deposits 232,078,290 261,787,860

239,248,629 268,268,460

Fixed deposits amounting to AED 177.5 million (2016: AED 229.7 million) are under lien in respect of bank credit
facilities granted to the Group.

All fixed deposits with banks mature within different periods not exceeding one year from the financial date of
deposit and carry interest rates between 2.5% to 3.25% per annum (31 December 2016: 2.5% to 5% per annum).

Fixed deposits with banks as at 31 December 2017 include AED 10.3 million (2016: AED 10.3 million) deposited
in the name of the Group to the order of the Ministry of Economy and Trade of the United Arab Emirates as
required by the Federal Law Number (6) of 2007 relating to Insurance Authority.

Allowance for doubtful receivables
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15 Cash and bank balances (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cashflows are analysed as follows;

2017 2016
AED AED

Bank balances and cash 239,248,629 268,268,460
Bank borrowings (125,421,763)   (145,909,069) 
Cash and cash equivalents 113,826,866     122,359,391

16 Share capital 2017 2016
AED AED

Issued and fully paid:
230,000,000 shares of AED 1 each 230,000,000 230,000,000

17 Statutory reserve

18 General reserve

19 Provision for employees' end of service indemnity

Movement in the net liability is as follows:
2017 2016
AED AED

At 1 January 14,328,526 13,367,614
Charge for the year 1,258,173 1,173,227
Paid during the year (1,292,166)       (212,315)        
At 31 December 14,294,533 14,328,526

20 Bank borrowings

2017 2016
AED AED

Bank overdrafts 125,421,763 145,909,069

The general reserve is established through transfers from profit for the year as recommended by the Board of
Directors and approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The reserve is distributable based on a
recommendation by the Board of Directors approved by a Shareholders' resolution.

In accordance with the UAE Commercial Companies Law no. (2) of 2015 ("the Law") and the Company's Articles
of Association, 10% of the profit for the year should be transferred to legal reserve. The Group may resolve to
discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for
distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the Law.

The Group has bank facilities in the form of overdrafts repayable upon demand and bearing interest ranging from
3.05% to 4.25% per annum (2016: 3.05% to 4.25%) . These facilities are secured by lien on fixed deposits
amounting to AED 177.5 million (2016: AED 229.7 million) . The bank overdraft limit provided under the facilities
is AED 212.5 million (2016: AED 275.4 million) .

During the year, the shareholders of the Company approved the transfer of AED 100 million from general reserve to
retained earnings, in the annual general meeting held on 25 April 2017.
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21 Insurance and other payables
2017 2016
AED AED

Due to insurance and reinsurance companies 59,316,190 60,778,923

Other payable:
Insurance customer payables 65,468,704 79,812,135
Accrued expenses and provisions 4,169,111 3,187,044
Other 5,790,329 8,711,255

134,744,334 152,489,357

22 Investment loss - net 2017 2016
AED AED

Net (loss) / gain on sale of investment in securities (190,404)            1,334,784
Interest income 7,859,928 7,735,154
Dividend income 1,480,759 2,055,916
Loss on revaluation of investments - FVTPL (note 10.1)             (634,173)          (228,793)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment                        -                (3,586)
Provision for doubtful debt from a related party (note 26)          (6,352,500)                     -   
Other income 273,794 40,688
Finance costs          (6,319,714)       (5,653,658)
Unallocated general and administrative expenses        (14,877,091)     (13,697,122)

(18,759,401)             (8,416,617)

23 General and administrative expenses

2017 2016
AED AED

Staff cost 33,745,919 33,497,193
Depreciation of property and equipment (note 8) 1,570,140 2,076,397
Allowance for doubtful receivables charged (note 13.1) 261,000 1,044,000

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging the following expenses which are included in the general and
administrative expenses and unallocated general and administrative expenses.

Unallocated general administrative expenses include social contribution made by the Group of AED 0.367 million
(2016: AED 0.342 million).
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24 Earnings per share 2017 2016

Profit for the year attributable to equity
  holders of the Parent (AED) 20,369,302 21,056,787

Weighted average number of shares 230,000,000 230,000,000

Earnings per share (AED)                   0.09                  0.09 

25 Disposal of subsidiary and asset held for sale

2017
AED

Assets
Property and equipment 607,656
Investment in financial assets at FVTPL 66,101
Investment in financial assets at FVTOCI 2,538,147
Investment properties 2,934,241
Insurance receivables 20,703,559
Reinsurer share of outstanding claims 10,729,005
Reinsurer share of unearned premium reserve 555,659
Other receivables and prepayments 4,337,679
Cash and bank balances 13,617,732

56,089,779

Liabilities
Bank borrowings 3,662,112
Insurance and other payables 7,957,899
Outstanding claims reserve 11,846,482
Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) reserve 6,982,538
Unearned premium reserve 19,060,298

49,509,329

Net assets de-recognised 6,580,450
Non-controlling interest de-recognised (324,968)         
Consideration received on disposal of 60% equity interest
  in subsidiary (2,848,074)      
Asset held for sale (1,693,322)      
Loss on de-consolidation of subsidiary recognised in the
  consoldiated statement of profit or loss

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding at reporting date. There is no dilution impact on basic earnings per 

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board of Directors of the Group approved a plan to dispose off the
Group’s entire equity interest in its subsidiary in Jordan. The Group lost control over its subsidiary pursuant to a
sale of 60% of the equity shares in the subsidiary held by the Group. Accordingly, the subsidiary has been
deconsolidated from these consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group retained a portion of the equity shares of the de-consolidated subsidiary which
is classified as asset held for sale as per International Financial Reporting Standard 5: Non-current Assets held for
sale and discontinued operations.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at the date of de-consolidation were as follows:

1,714,086
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26 Related party transactions

2017 2016
AED AED

Included in due from related parties
Due from related parties 106,966,596 101,463,712
Due from shareholders 3,460,718 3,208,226
Provision for doubtful debts from a
  related party (note 22)               (6,352,500)                           -   

104,074,814 104,671,938

Due to related parties 91,800 104,752

Included in insurance contract liabilities
Gross outstanding claims 828,577 622,084

2017 2016
AED AED

Gross premium 11,324,037 11,413,813
Claims paid 3,447,707 1,606,951

2017 2016
AED AED

Salaries and benefits 7,739,095 9,023,390

27 Contingent liabilities and commitments

2017 2016
AED AED

Letters of guarantee 68,218,662 68,227,682

28 Operating lease arrangements

2017 2016
AED AED

Less than one year 1,378,738               2,491,942 
Between one and five years                             -                 1,503,608 

1,378,738 3,995,550

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office premises. At reporting date, the Group
has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel

The Group enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a related party as
contained in International Accounting Standard (IAS) 24: Related Party Disclosures. Related parties comprise
companies and entities under common ownership and/or common management and control, shareholders, directors
and key management personnel of the Group, their close family members and entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by such parties. The Group’s management believes that the terms of such transactions are
not significantly different from those that could have been obtained from third parties.

At reporting date, amounts due from/to related parties were as follows:

These amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. 

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:
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29 Segment information

Operating segment information

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
 2017  2016  2017  2016  2017  2016 
 AED  AED  AED  AED  AED  AED 

ASSETS
Property and equipment         6,434,985           7,499,961            140,130              160,148           6,575,115           7,660,109 
Investment in associates     165,746,393       173,581,343                     -                         -         165,746,393       173,581,343 
Investment in financial assets at FVTPL       53,500,127         61,534,832                     -                         -           53,500,127         61,534,832 
Investment in financial assets at FVTOCI                     -             2,538,147                     -                         -                         -             2,538,147 
Investment properties     172,602,503       172,934,241                     -                         -         172,602,503       172,934,241 
Insurance receivables     132,354,813       136,070,922         1,712,004           3,902,347       134,066,817       139,973,269 
Reinsurer share of outstanding claims     140,811,962       143,056,234         2,582,038           7,378,164       143,394,000       150,434,398 
Reinsurer share of incurred but not reported claims (IBNR)       14,309,000           8,799,000         1,527,000           1,022,000         15,836,000           9,821,000 
Reinsurer share of unearned premium reserve       50,732,000         44,356,638         3,534,000           2,959,000         54,266,000         47,315,638 
Due from related parties     103,858,528       104,671,938            216,286                       -         104,074,814       104,671,938 
Other receivables and prepayments       18,133,200         25,238,635                     -                         -           18,133,200         25,238,635 
Security deposits            667,775              239,675                     -                         -                667,775              239,675 
Cash and bank balances     230,748,629       259,768,460         8,500,000           8,500,000       239,248,629       268,268,460 
Asset held for sale         1,693,322                       -                       -                         -             1,693,322                       -   
Total assets  1,091,593,237    1,140,290,026       18,211,458         23,921,659    1,109,804,695    1,164,211,685 

For management purposes the Group is organised into two operating segments, general insurance and life assurance. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information.

General insurance    Life insurance Total
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29 Segment information (continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
 2017  2016  2017  2016  2017  2016 
 AED  AED  AED  AED  AED  AED 

LIABILITIES
Due to related parties              91,800              104,752                     -                         -                  91,800              104,752 
Provision for employees' end of service indemnity       13,996,351         14,056,270            298,182              272,256         14,294,533         14,328,526 
Bank borrowings     125,421,763       145,909,069                     -                         -         125,421,763       145,909,069 
Insurance and other payables     132,299,198       151,581,409         2,445,136              907,948       134,744,334       152,489,357 
Outstanding claims reserve     161,391,398       178,710,405         2,918,582           7,873,439       164,309,980       186,583,844 
Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) reserve       41,751,000         41,011,174         1,575,000           1,130,000         43,326,000         42,141,174 
Unearned premium reserve     165,039,000       167,772,437         3,481,000           2,901,000       168,520,000       170,673,437 
Unexpired risk reserve            804,000              679,000            329,000              230,000           1,133,000              909,000 
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve         2,751,000           3,098,000              91,000              152,000           2,842,000           3,250,000 
Total liabilities     643,545,510       702,922,516       11,137,900         13,466,643       654,683,410       716,389,159 

EQUITY
Share capital       230,000,000       230,000,000 
Statutory reserve         67,257,868         65,220,938 
General reserve       100,000,000       200,000,000 
Investments revaluation reserve                       -           (1,379,079)
Retained earning / (accumulated loss)         57,863,417       (46,589,876)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company       455,121,285       447,251,983 
Non-controlling interests                       -                570,543 
Total equity       455,121,285       447,822,526 
Total liabilities and equity    1,109,804,695    1,164,211,685 

General insurance    Life insurance Total
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29 Segment information (continued)

Operating segment information

 2017  2016  2017  2016  2017  2016 
 AED  AED  AED  AED  AED  AED 

Underwriting income
Gross insurance premium     383,053,837    368,528,626        13,233,081      10,247,472          396,286,918          378,776,098 
Less: reinsurance share of gross premium   (142,965,180)  (125,479,126) (12,496,182)        (10,108,772)        (155,461,362)        (135,587,898)
Less: reinsurance share of ceded business premium       (2,199,355)      (6,824,734)                      -                      -              (2,199,355)            (6,824,734)
Net retained premium     237,889,302    236,224,766             736,899           138,700          238,626,201          236,363,466 
Net change in unearned premium reserve       (9,395,840)        6,446,082               (5,000)             18,000            (9,400,840)              6,464,082 
Net insurance premium     228,493,462    242,670,848             731,899           156,700          229,225,361          242,827,548 
Commission earned       78,173,524      59,735,068          6,049,280        5,878,900            84,222,804            65,613,968 
Commission incurred     (31,373,660)    (31,125,563)        (1,010,253)         (793,392)          (32,383,913)          (31,918,955)
Net underwriting income     275,293,326    271,280,353          5,770,926        5,242,208          281,064,252          276,522,561 
Gross claims paid   (331,519,189)  (325,751,015)        (8,853,870)      (1,990,096)        (340,373,059)        (327,741,111)
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers     119,707,126    115,168,913          7,946,530        1,749,590          127,653,656          116,918,503 
Net claims paid   (211,812,063)  (210,582,102)           (907,340)         (240,506)        (212,719,403)        (210,822,608)
Decrease / (increase) in provision for outstanding claims         5,472,525    (11,034,515)          4,954,857         (560,439)            10,427,382          (11,594,954)
(Decrease) / increase in 'reinsurer share of 
  outstanding claims         8,484,733    (19,769,798)        (4,796,126)           503,290              3,688,607          (19,266,508)
(Increase) / decrease in unexpired risk reserve          (125,000)        6,931,000             (99,000)           (43,000)               (224,000)              6,888,000 
Increase in incurred but not reported 
  claims (IBNR) reserve       (2,212,364)      (2,500,420)               60,000           (76,000)            (2,152,364)            (2,576,420)
Decrease / (increase) in unallocated loss 
  adjustment expense reserve            347,000           284,000               61,000           (31,000)                 408,000                 253,000 
Net claims incurred   (199,845,169)  (236,671,835)           (726,609)         (447,655)        (200,571,778)        (237,119,490)
Underwriting profit       75,448,157      34,608,518          5,044,317        4,794,553            80,492,474            39,403,071 

For the year ended 31 December
General insurance      Life insurance Total
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29 Segment information (continued)

2017 2016

Underwriting profit (continued)            80,492,474            39,403,071 
Net investments loss          (18,759,401)            (8,416,617)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary            (1,714,086)                          -   
Share of profits from equity accounted investees              1,965,050            30,027,127 
General and administrative expenses          (41,860,310)          (40,293,889)

Profit for the year            20,123,727            20,719,692 

30 Comparative figures

As at 31 December 2016: As previously reported Reclassification Reclassified
AED AED AED

Insurance receivables    188,873,249          (48,899,980)          139,973,269 

Outstanding claims reserve    235,483,824            48,899,980          186,583,844 

For the year ended 31 December 2016: As previously reported Reclassification Reclassified
AED AED AED

Gross claims paid  (355,672,004)          (27,930,893)        (327,741,111)

Provision for outstanding claims      16,335,939            27,930,893          (11,594,954)

Following comparatives have been reclassified / regrouped to conform to the presentation adopted in the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December
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